

Education, Commissioning and Quality Committee Terms of Reference and Operating Arrangements

Date: July 2023

Version: 3

Review Date: Annually

1. Introduction

In line with Section 3 of the Standing Orders, the Board shall nominate annually a committee which covers education, education commissioning and quality management of education provision and contracts. This Committee will be known as the Education, Commissioning and Quality Committee.

The terms of reference and operating arrangements set by the Board in respect of this Committee are detailed below.

These terms of reference and operating arrangements are to be read alongside the standard terms of reference and operating arrangements applicable to all HEIW committees.

2. Purpose

The purpose of the Education, Commissioning and Quality Committee (“the Committee”) is to:

- **Advise** and **assure** the Board and the Chief Executive (who is the Accountable Officer) on whether effective arrangements are in place to plan, commission, deliver and quality manage which shall include continual improvement in line with the Duty of Quality education systems and provide assurance on behalf of the organisation.
- Where appropriate, **advise** the Board and the Chief Executive on where, and how, its education systems and assurance framework may be strengthened and developed further.
- Recommend to the Board education training plans including investment in new programmes and disinvestment in others.
- Recommend to the Board on strategic matters relating to Education Commissioning and Education Quality.
- **Recommend** the specification of tender documents in respect of Education to the Board

3. Delegated Powers

With regard to its role in providing advice to the Board, the Committee will:

- i. Provide assurance to the Board as to the effective management and improvement of the quality of HEIW's education and related research activities. Such assurance shall include a focus on continual improvement in accordance with the Duty of Quality.
- ii. Recommend to the Board areas for investment/disinvestment in education and training plans taking into account value-based commissioning.
- iii. Recommend to the Board the national annual education and training plan.
- iv. Alert the Audit and Assurance Committee and the Board to any matters requiring governance action and oversee such action on behalf of the Board.
- v. Oversee the development, implementation and updating of strategies, policies, structures and processes for the governance of education and training which shall include taking a forward looking and strategic view.
- vi. Seek assurance of the effective performance, monitoring, management and value of education and training programmes and contracts, including the identification and management of related risk.
- vii. Monitor compliance of education and training activities with:
 - a. statutory and regulatory requirements, including equity, equality legislation and Welsh language requirements and;
 - b. with NHS Wales policy and other relevant policies and HEIW's priorities in relation to equity, equality and diversity, person-centred care and participation, and educational quality.
- viii. Monitor HEIW's compliance with delegated responsibilities given to it by health regulators i.e. GMC, GDC and GPhC as delegated to HEIW.
- ix. Promote collaboration within HEIW and with external agencies in relation to educational and training governance which shall include wellbeing.
- x. To work collaboratively with other HEIW Board standing committees.
- xi. Scrutinise the specification of education tender documents.

- xii. Recommend the specification of tender documents to the Board for Education.
- xiii. Recommend undertaking research on Education, Quality and Commissioning to the Board.
- xiv. Engage with Board Development Sessions with regards to making recommendations on strategic matters relating to Education Commissioning and Education Quality.
- xv. Seek assurance in respect of risk areas within its area of responsibility and highlight material areas of concern to the Audit and Assurance Committee.
- xvi. Highlight any issues out of the ordinary to the Board.

The Committee will review and agree its forward work programme on an annual basis and will recommend it to the Board for approval.

4. Membership, Attendees Quorum and Term

4.1.1 Members

A minimum of two members, comprising of at least:

- Chair: Independent Member
- Vice Chair: Independent Member

The Chair of the organisation shall not be a member of the Committee but may be invited to attend by the Chair of the Committee as appropriate.

4.1.2 Deputy Independent Member

The Board may appoint a Deputy Independent Member for the Committee. Where a member of the Committee is unable to attend a Committee meeting, then the nominated Deputy may attend in his or her absence as a member of the Committee. If a Deputy attends a Committee as a member of the Committee then the Deputy shall be included for the calculation of a quorum and may exercise voting rights.

4.2 Attendees

In attendance:

- Director of Nurse and Health Professional Education
- Medical Director
- Director of Finance, Planning and Performance
- Board Secretary

- Deputy Director of Education, Commissioning and Quality
- Postgraduate Dental Dean
- Postgraduate Pharmacy Dean
- Postgraduate Medical Dean

In addition to this, others from within or outside the organisation who the Committee considers should attend, will be invited taking account of the matters under consideration at each meeting.

The Chief Executive shall be invited to attend, at least annually, to discuss with the Committee the process for assurance that supports the Annual Governance Statement.

4.3 Quorum

At least two members must be present to ensure the quorum of the Committee, one of whom should be the Committee Chair (or Vice Chair where appointed).

4.4 Terms

Immediately following the establishment of HEIW the Members shall be appointed for an initial period of two years. Thereafter Members shall be appointed for a term of one year.

5. Frequency of Meetings

Meetings shall be held no less than quarterly and otherwise as the Chair of the Committee deems necessary – consistent with HEIW's annual plan of Board Business.

6. Relationships and accountabilities with the Board and its Committees/ Groups

The Committee must have an effective relationship with other committees or sub-committees of the Board so that it can understand the system of assurance for the Board as a whole. It is very important that the Committee remains aware of its distinct role and does not seek to perform the role of other committees.

The Committee will maintain effective working relationships with HEIW'S Audit and Assurance Committee (AAC), and with HEIW's other Board committees and subcommittees. To strengthen liaison with the AAC, one Independent Member will serve on both committees.